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Brooks Development Authority 
Request for Proposal (RFP) 

Engineering Consulting Services 
Bid #03132019-004 

Questions 

1. I was reviewing the Engineering Consulting Services RFQ and was wondering if 
Landscape Architecture & Planning would be considered a civil trade? 

ANSWER: It is not considered a civil trade, but the RFQ encourages teaming with 
a landscape architect to achieve points towards LID design. 

2. I noticed in the RFQ on page 8, IV SCORING CRITERIA, 1a Civil Engineering (55 
points), references to Low Impact Development (in conjunction with landscape 
architecture).  I am interested in providing landscape architecture services.  So, is there 
a separate RFQ for landscapes to complement this RFQ? Can I submit as a prime 
presenting Vickrey & Associates or should I pursue this as a sub-consultant to civil 
engineers? 

ANSWER: A separate RFQ is not going to be released for Architectural services. 
Brooks cannot give advice on how a respondent should team. The intent is to allow 
for a landscape architectural firm to provide, “as needed” services to achieve a 
LID design.  

Also refer to answer to responses for question # 1 and # 2 

3. Is Landscape Architecture & Planning allowed as a sub-consultant to Civil Engineering? 

ANSWER: Please refer to answer to responses for question # 1 and # 2 

4. Is Environmental allowed as a sub-consultant to Civil Engineering? 

ANSWER:  No 

5. Are the SBEDA Contracting goals for MBE, WBE, AABE (as broken out on page 12 
of the RFQ) percentages of the overall 50% SBE goal? Or, are they meant to be the 
percentage of the overall contract (i.e. MBE is 31% of the entire contract rather than 
31% of the 50% SBE goal).  
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ANSWER:  SBEDA contracting goals are percentages of the overall 50% goal.  See 
Addendum I for further clarification. 

6. If a prime firm decides to team, do they need to meet the SBEDA Contracting goals? 

ANSWER:  Yes. 

7. I received the referenced RFQ earlier this afternoon and would appreciate your inputs 
regarding the SBEDA requirements as presented on Page 12.  The information provided 
seems to imply that the majority of work to be done under the contract (~93.2%) must 
be done by firms that meet SBEDA classification as certified by the South Central Texas 
Regional Certification Agency.  This would leave only 6.8% to be conducted by other 
non-SBEDA firms.  Am I interpreting this correctly or do the requirements simply 
indicate the preferred division of contract work among SBEDA firms for a smaller (set-
aside) portion of the overall contract?  Based on other contracts that we hold with public 
agencies, overall SBEDA requirements typically are on the order of 15-30% of the total 
contract, with a preferred breakdown between SBE, MBE, WBE, and AABE very 
similar to what is indicated on Page 12.  If a smaller set-aside does apply to this contract, 
please advise as to what level of SBEDA participation is preferred.  I would greatly 
appreciate clarification of this issue and how points will be awarded during the 
Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) evaluation process. 

ANSWER:  The overall goal is 50% of the contract.  For instance, if you have a 
subcontractor that is a Small, Minority-Owned Business and they are awarded 
50% of the contract; the Prime would receive credit for the SBE & MBE goals.   
Please see Addendum I for further clarification. 

8. If we have a sub-consultant that is both MBE and AABE will their percentage be 
credited for both categories?   

ANSWER:  Yes, see Addendum I for further clarification. 

9. Do we need to create an org chart for each discipline we intend to choose or just one org 
chart for all disciplines? 

ANSWER: Please provide an Org chart for each discipline. 

10. Do we need to write a project understanding for each discipline we intend to choose or 
just one project understanding integrating all disciplines? 

ANSWER: Please provide a project understanding for each discipline 

11. Is it the intent of the owner to contract with large (full service) and specialized SWMBE 
businesses and award task orders in accordance with the contracting goals outlined in 
the RFQ? Or is the intent to encourage organizations to team without any clear task 
order to anticipate potential use of SWMBE sub-consultants? 
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ANSWER:  See Addendum I. 

12. Is there a page limit on the submission per discipline? 

ANSWER: No more than 30 per discipline please!

13. Civil: - There are several different types of Civil Projects listed on Page 5. The "Work 
Plan" we use to distribute/allocate tasks to our team members will be different for each 
one.  If you include the "Work Plan" we provide on this RFQ in our contract, and hold 
us accountable to it. How difficult is it to make this change to fit more what we are 
tasked to do? 

ANSWER: Please structure your team to account for the services outlined in the 
scope. The Engineering services pool allows for flexibility. 

14. I understand Section IV.1 (Scoring Criteria) to state that experience must be 
demonstrated, per discipline, with no more than 5 example projects per discipline.  
Section IV.1.a (Civil Engineering Scoring Criteria) lists three sections which 
respondents will be graded on: 1) Low Impact Development (LID), 2) Storm Water 
Management (SWM), and 3) Civil Land Planning (CLP).  The sub-bullet for Civil Land 
Planning states that project examples must be provided, at least one each, for 
commercial mixed-use, retail, office, and/or industrial developments.  

a. Do the project examples (at least one each, so minimum 4) stated in IV.4.a.Civil 
Land Planning, count toward the 5 example projects stated in the above section 
IV.4? 

ANSWER:  See Addendum I. 

b. Asked another way, can up to 5 example projects be submitted for each of the three 
Civil Engineering subsections (LID, SWM, and CLP) for a total of up to 15 project 
examples?  

ANSWER:  See Addendum I. 

15. Are there any Disabled Veteran Owned Points? 

ANSWER:  No. 

16. On page 12 of the RFQ, item 3.b calls out Brooks’ overall contracting goals for 
SBEDA.  As I read that section, it appears that Brooks’ goals are that approximately 
93% of the work will be executed by small or disadvantaged businesses and that roughly 
7% would be available for large businesses.  Can you please confirm that I’m reading your 
goals correctly?
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ANSWER:  See question #7. 

17. I have a question regarding how the points for local firms are determined and how/if 
consulting firms may contribute to the local points for the prime firm if not 
headquartered in San Antonio.  

ANSWER:  Scoring examples are provided in Addendum I. 

18. As discussed in the pre-proposal meeting, please confirm that Respondents can include 
up to 8 relevant project examples for Civil Engineering discipline responses (as opposed 
to the written limit of 5). 

ANSWER:  CONFIRMED 

19. As discussed, please confirm that Low Impact Development project examples must also 
be projects completed within the last five years. 

ANSWER:  CONFIRMED 

20. As discussed, please provide a detailed breakdown of how the 20 points for SBEDA can 
be obtained. Based on my understanding from the meeting: 
• 10/20 points are for granted for being “local” 
• 2 pts each for each individual SBE, MBE, WBE, and AABE on the team 
• 2 pts for DBE 

ANSWER:  See question #17. 

21. I understand partial points can be earned toward the 10 local points based on the 
“localness” of the SBEDA firms on the team. Please provide a little more information 
on how those partial points can be earned. An example would be sufficient. 

ANSWER:  See question #17. 

22. Can the Organizational chart be placed on 11x17 paper, folded down to 8.5x11 for the 
hard copy submittals? 

ANSWER: Yes 

23. The RFQ states to provide projects within five years – is that completed design or 
completed construction? 

ANSWER: Completed construction. 
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24. What is the specific intent of this section – is it to set as a goal the aggregate total 
(93.2%) for each project contract?  Or is it the intent to state that Brooks seeks, through 
good faith efforts, the participation of qualified of SBE or, MBE or, WBE or, AABE 
firms at the percent stated in any combination? 

ANSWER:  Brooks’ intent is for a firm, through good faith efforts, to include 
participation of qualified SBEDA firms to meet the stated goals.  Additional 
clarification is provided in Addendum I.   

25. We are going to submit Civil, Structural and MEP. Would Brooks prefer three separate 
SOQ packages from us or all in one package?  

ANSWER:  Respondent may submit as one package.   

26. I would like to use tabs to separate out each section required. Is this ok? 

ANSWER:  Yes. 

27. Per page 14 of the RFQ, it says not to include attachments on the USB. The attachments 
are the attachment I, II, III and IV? I know to include these in the hard copies. 

ANSWER:  That is correct.   

28. Can you provide me the website link or location where I can download the attachments 
I, II, III and IV. 

ANSWER:  The attachments can be found at the following website:  
https://livebrooks.com/vendor-bids/03132019-004-rfq-for-engineering-consulting-
services/

29. IV. Scoring Criteria, Item 1, Past Performance, Civil Land Planning:  Project history is 
requested to be included as one of the components to describe. Can you elaborate on the 
information you would like to see here? 

ANSWER: A narrative on the scope, team, vision, significance, and purpose of the 
project you are presenting. 

30. VII. Procedures for Submission, Item 1:  Regarding the 30-page limit, we learned during 
the pre-proposal meeting on March 26 that 30 pages is allowed for each discipline we 
are submitting on. Is this correct? So that if we are submitting on two disciplines, we 
are allowed 60 pages in one single comprehensive proposal? 

ANSWER: Per rules yes, thirty pages would be allowed per discipline but please 
use judgement. Thirty pages is the limit not the requirement.  

https://livebrooks.com/vendor-bids/03132019-004-rfq-for-engineering-consulting-services/
https://livebrooks.com/vendor-bids/03132019-004-rfq-for-engineering-consulting-services/
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31. We are only submitting for Structural Engineering Services. Am I interpreting that 
correctly, that we can highlight AT MOST 5 projects that we have experience with? 

ANSWER: Yes 

32. What does it mean by “Brooks requests that appendices not be manipulated with 
software”? Does that basically mean not to insert digital signatures? 

ANSWER:  This means that we request that you not convert the attachments to 
Word documents.  The documents may be handwritten.   

33. What do you consider to be an environmental monitoring?  Natural resources 
monitoring or soil/groundwater/storm water monitoring?   

ANSWER: Both 

34. Will you describe the services that would be expected of the Civil Engineer as it relates 
to “Construction Contract Management”?  Typically, we see this including periodic site 
observations, review of contractor submittals, pay applications, and questions/change 
orders to the civil plans.  Will Brooks expect services beyond these of the Civil 
Engineer?  

ANSWER: No. The typical scenario that you mentioned is sufficient. 

35. The RFQ states that it requires a form 1295 and the certification of filing. Two questions: 

a. There is only one form (attached), correct? The form itself is called a 1295 & 
Certification of Filing.  

ANSWER:  That is correct.  There is only one form. 

b. It is also requested that this form be signed in front of a notary, however I believe 
this form has recently changed and to my understanding no longer provides a 
section for a notary stamp & signature like the previous form version. The form 
now states “Unsworn Declaration”. Please see attached. Can you confirm that a 
notarized form is needed? 

ANSWER:  That is correct, the form no longer requires a notary stamp.  A 
notarized copy is not needed.   

36. Under the scope of services- Mechanical (MEP)- please clarify the meaning of 
"Expertise on MDF/IDF mechanical"  

ANSWER:  Brooks apologizes for the confusion.  This item was listed under the 
wrong discipline.   
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37. Is it mandatory that respondents have to be located or have a satellite in San Antonio to 
be considered?   

ANSWER:  It is not mandatory to be located or have a satellite office in in San 
Antonio to be considered.  Please see Addendum I regarding the SBEDA 
requirements. 

38. We are currently certified with the City of Houston for SBE, DBE, MBE and HUB and 
are in the process of becoming certified with SCTRCA. Can our COH certifications 
serve as a place holder until certifications with the SCTRCA are finalized?  

ANSWER:  Brooks only accepts certifications received from the South Central 
Texas Regional Certification Agency.   

39. In the Pre-Bid meeting, it had been mentioned that a list would be compiled of the firms 
that are SBE, MBE, WBE, etc. Would it be possible to get that information so we might 
reach out to those firms for teaming opportunities? 

ANSWER:  Please see attached.   



Name Company Email Certifications

Dylan Howell Alpha Testing dhowell@alphatesting.com

Chris Martinez Arias Geo Professionals cmartinez@ariasinc.com SBE, MBE, DBE

Andrea Narendorf ATG anarendorf@emailatg.com

Jennifer Soto Bain Medina Bain jsoto@bmbi.com

Rick Medina Bain Medina Bain ncharder@bmbi.com

Monica Hodges Barker & Associates monica.hodges@barker-sa.com SBE

Chelsea Osbourn BGE, Inc. cosbourn@bgeinc.com

Jeremy Doege Big Red Dog jeremy.doege@wginc.com SBE

Lauren Setterbo Cardno Structural Engineering lauren.setterbo@cardno.com

Ana Peters CDS Muery ana.peters@cdsmuery.com

Jesse Cantu CEC jcantu@cectexas.com

George Peck CEC gpeck@cectexas.com

Anthony Medina Cleary Zimmerman Engineers anthonym@clearyzimmermann.com

Jesse Reyes CNG Engineering jesse.reyes@cngengineering.com SBE, MBE, AABE, DBE

Jeffrey McKinnie Cude Engineers jmckinnie@cudeengineers.com

Jasmine Tuney Cude Engineers jtoney@cudeengineers.com

Kelly Moon Datacom Design kmoon@datacomdesign.com SBE, WBE

Stephen Urias Datum Engineers stephen@datumengineers.com SBE

Inez Gallegos EEA Engineers inezgallegos@eeace.com

Corby Munsell Freese & Nichols corby.munsell@freese.com

Joe Cortes GS Engineering jcortes@gs-engineering.com

Jennifer Ramos Halff Associates jramos@halff.com

Marco Diaz Halff Associates mdiaz@halff.com

Meagan hall HMT Engineering meaganh@hmtnb.com SBE

LaShawn Baylor ICMS
lashawn@integratedcmsolutions.com

SBE, MBE, WBE, 

AABE, DBE

Stephanie Silva IES ssilva@ie-services.com

Cesar Silva Jacobs cesar.silva@jacobs.com

Jorge Olivares Jose I. Guerra, Inc. jolivares@guerra.com

Yan Cheung Jose I. Guerra, Inc. ycheung@guerra.com

Erin Salinas KFW Engineers esalinas@kfwengineers.com

Armando Nielola KFW Engineers aniebla@kfwengineers.com

Matt Cox Kimley-Horn matt.cox@kimley-horn.com

Tony Saucedo Mendez Engineers tsaucedo@mendezengineering.com

Ian VonWinkle MS2 ivohwinkle@ms2-inc.com SBE

Squire MSE Group msquire@msegroup.com SBE, MBE, WBE, DBE

Ray Kezar O'Connor & Kezar ray@oconnorkezar.com

Mark O'Connor O'Connor & Kezar mark@oconnorkezar.com

Chris Napendorf O'Connell Robertson cnarendorf@oconnellrobertson.com

Amy Boone Open Air Studio Landscape Architect amyb@goopenair.com

Eduardo Parra Parra & Co. ejparra@parracompany.com SBE, MBE, WBE

Eric Neuner Raba-Kistner eneuner@rkci.com

Rick Klar Raba-Kistner rKlar@rkci.com

Russell Persyn RESPEC russell.persyn@respec.com

Steve Bourassa SPB Engineering steve@spb-engineering.com SBE, WBE, VBE, DIBE

Brittany Chambers Terracon brittany.chambers@terracon.com

Jesse H. Aguilar Terracon jesse.aguilar@terracon.com

Sherry Marchard TOP Engineering sherry@sweetwaterusa.com

Stan Torvik TOP Engineering storvik@topengineersplus.com

Tom Pulliam TRC tpulliam@trcsolutions.com

Justin Clemens TTL jclemens@ttlusa.com

Ryan Plagens UP Engineering ryan@upengineering.com SBE, WBE

SBE, WBE

SBE

SBE

SBE, MBE

SBE

SBE
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